Software Requirements Specification

Siena College Catalog Project

November 2, 2004

Requested by:	Ms. Kate Zimmerman Academic Program Administrator Office of Academic Affairs Siena College				
	Mr. Brian Smith College Webmaster Office of Enrollment and Planning Technology Siena College				
	Ms. Lisa Veino Office of Academic Affairs				
SI	partacus Computing Solutions				
Prepared by:	Michael Cervone, Web Designer Thomas Hackett, Librarian Sean Hannon, Software Consultant Sara Pagliaro, Team Leader John Sawicki, Systems Administrator				
	<i>E-mail:</i> spartacus_computing@hotmail.com				
Presentation information:	Wednesday, November 3, 2004 Roger Bacon 328 8:15 AM				

Siena College Catalog Database Software Requirements Specification

Table of Contents

Software Requirements Specification

Section 1: Product Overview and Summary	3
Section 2: Development, Operating, and Maintenance Environments	3
Section 3: External Interfaces and Data Flows	4
Section 4: Functional Requirements	4
Section 5: Performance Requirements	5
Section 6: Exception Handling	5
Section 7: Early Subsets and Implementation Priorities	6
Section 8: Foreseeable Modifications and Enhancements	6
Section 9: Acceptance Criteria	6
Section 10: Testing Requirements	7
Section 11: Design Hints and Guidelines	8

Appendices:

Appendix A: Data Flow Diagrams	9
Appendix B: Prototypes of External Interfaces	16
Appendix C: Gantt Charts	25
Appendix D: Glossary of Terms	26

Section 1: Product Overview and Summary

The process of editing and reproducing the Siena College Catalog has been a tedious paperpushing process in the past. Ms. Kate Zimmerman and Mr. Brian Smith have asked Spartacus Computing Solutions to transform this process so that it can be done electronically. The information for the catalog will be stored in a database. The various department heads, assistant deans, vice presidents, and other specified users will have access to the most recent version of the catalog in order to make changes limited to their fields. Updates to the database will be done in real-time so that the users in Academic Affairs can compare the old version with the updated version.

Section 2: Development, Operating and Maintenance Environments

The *Siena College Course Catalog* program will be developed on systems provided to us in the software engineering lab. The computer resources consist of a machine with Windows 2000 and another with Windows XP. For development purposes we will be using mySQL, as per the request of our clients, for the newly created course catalog database. The mySQL course catalog database will also be populated with some data from the Siena database "Banner." Data from Banner will include such information as course description, department descriptions, and department faculty listings. The web interface of the program will be developed with PHP and/or ASP, as per the request of our clients.

The user interfaces will consist of a variety of screens depending on the person using the screen and what they are responsible for doing, described as follows:

The *department heads* will have a screen that allows them to review the faculty information, department information, read the course descriptions, and a field to make notes as to what changes they have made. The department head can modify the faculty and department information, but the course description is to be "Read Only" access. The data fields will contain verification that the department head has looked at and acknowledged that the fields are ready for the catalog.

The *College Administrators* will also have a screen from which they will be able to make changes to the general information (i.e. mission statements, school information, etc.) They will be able to make changes to this information and record the changes that they made. They will then have a field where they can verify that the field that they edited is ready for the catalog.

The Assistant Deans and Deans will have a screen that allows them to view the progress made by the department heads underneath them in terms of verifying the data fields which they are responsible for. The Assistant Dean will also be able to review a summary of changes made by the department heads.

Academic Affairs will have an environment much like that of the Assistant Dean with a few exceptions. A list of all department heads will be visible and will show the progress that they have made. Also, a summary of changes will be available for viewing and

editing (if necessary) by Academic Affairs. Academic Affairs will also have a maintenance environment which they will be able to grant permissions to different users, which will determine what screens and information other users will be able to access.

Universal users will also have a screen which they will have access to the electronic catalog for viewing purposes only. They will not be able to make any changes, but will be able to select the course or part of the catalog that they want to view.

Section 3: External Interfaces and Data Flows

Data flow diagrams are located in Appendix A. Prototypes for the external interfaces are located in Appendix B.

Section 4: Functional Requirements

The following functions are required for our system:

- The system will have a login screen for all authorized users, including department heads, school deans and assistant deans, college administrators, and members of the Academic Affairs staff.
- The system will have an authentication process to restrict unauthorized people.
- Department heads, school deans and assistant deans, college administrators, and the database administrator in Academic Affairs will allow have the ability to make changes to specified portions of the database. Department heads and college administrators can only modify information in their departments, while users at the dean level may modify information in any department that it oversees. The head user at the Academic Affairs level (i.e., Ms Zimmerman) will be able to modify any changes to any department's information.
- Users at the dean level will have the ability to approve changes made in sections from those at the department head level.
- Users will receive confirmation that their request was received.
- The head user from Academic Affairs (i.e., Ms. Zimmerman) with have administrative privileges and in turn, will have the ability to:
 - o Create new users
 - Set or reset user passwords
 - Grant users proper access to the system
 - Remove or limit access from users
 - Make changes to information within the system
 - Deny changes submitted by any user
 - Approve final changes to the information to be stored in the catalog database
 - o Delete a user and his/her system privileges at anytime
- The head user must monitor and maintain the database on a consistent basis to ensure the system is running and working properly.

Section 5: Performance Requirements

In order for our College Catalog Program to perform properly, several constraints and requirements are necessary.

- Our system must be secure. Only authorized personnel can have the ability to read from and write to our database. Reading and/or writing privileges will be provided to our users from the main administrator of Academic Affairs (i.e., Ms. Zimmerman) via use of usernames and passwords. Our system must also distinguish which part of the database the user will be able to view or update. The system must prevent unauthorized users from viewing or tampering with the information stored in our database.
- Our system must be efficient. Working with databases can be difficult if one does not know what they are doing. Simple miscalculations can cause longer processing times. Our system must be able to quickly access the documents needed for each user, which in turn will allow them to make their necessary changes rapidly and with ease. By looking at the size of text files, the time they take to load, the need to scroll through screens, as well as other timing factors, we can make adjustments to these characteristics in our system to allow for more efficiency.
- Our system must be reliable. We must make sure that everyone that is supposed to have access to the database has the proper access and is able to change the information that they have the ability to change. This reliability function will be looked at during our testing phase, when we make sure that there is an ease of use on any user's end as well as the code for the product being correct. In order to insure the ease of use, we will involve the main users (i.e., Ms. Zimmerman) in the development of the user interface.

Section 6: Exception Handling

In many instances, our users may encounter an unexpected situation. In preparation of this, our program will try to work around these situations, should they arise. Exceptions that the system must be prepared to handle are as follows:

• User forgets username/password.

Should the user forget his/her username or password, on screen information will be provided on how to re-obtain this information. This process will be secure in order to prohibit unwanted users from accessing our database.

• User experiences abnormal computer problems (i.e. computer freezes, power/connection *is lost*).

The user will receive a confirmation page after their document is submitted. If this page is not received, then the document was not saved to the database. Our program may also provide the ability to backup documents every couple of minutes. If power or connection is lost, the user will not lose his/her entire work. When the user logs back on he/she may be able to access fragments of what they already completed.

Section 7: Early Subsets and Implementation Priorities

In order to meet the requirements of the system, several pieces must be completed. The most important underlying pieces of the software system are:

- 1. A user friendly and easy to use web application for any user to access catalog information;
- 2. A secure system for the data to be stored and valid user login and access to the data;
- 3. An online database to store all the information submitted by the authorized users and data stores (Banner, department heads, deans and assistant deans, college administrators, and users in Academic Affairs);
- 4. A form, designed specifically for a particular type of user, which will contain the current catalog information and allow the ability to change information, and if appropriate for the user, the ability to check off on changes already made to the current catalog.

Section 8: Foreseeable Modifications and Enhancements

In the development process, new ideas for future modifications and enhancements may arise that will improve the quality of the software. Possibilities for future changes to the software are as follows:

- New screens and functions may be added to enhance the ease of use and increase user friendliness.
- Accessing changes from multiple years' catalogs (2+ years back), allowing for comparison.
- The ability to add new courses to the database and develop new macros for those courses.

Section 9: Acceptance Criteria

This system will allow write access to specific catalog entries to authorized users. When a user logs into the system, they are directed to their specific section.

- 1. Department Heads:
 - Are able to view the current catalog version of the course description and of the department information.
 - Are able to make necessary changes to faculty listings, department policies and class descriptions for their department.
 - Has a check-off under each write section to show that all changes are finished.
- 2. School Assistant Dean
 - Scroll bar to locate a specific department
 - Has the current version of the catalog displayed one side of the screen
 - The changes submitted by the department head are displayed on the screen as well.
 - Check-off for each part of catalog info that was changed.

- After all changes are checked, submit an approval.
- 3. College Administration
 - The old catalog information is displayed.
 - Able to write in the changes next to old information.
 - Submit the changes.
- 4. Academic Affairs
 - Scroll to the desired department.
 - Able to review changes made when compared to previous catalog.
 - Check off on all changes made.
 - Check off that school administration has submitted changes.
 - Has total authorization of system.

Furthermore, any universal user should have the ability to view, but not edit, the course catalog via the Internet.

Section 10: Testing Requirements

• Users can log in.

Volunteers will be given a default password for a given level of access in the system. After they initially log in, they should be prompted to change their password. All levels of access will be tried with "dummy access" (so that no actual information is changed), and access will be removed after testing.

• Department Heads can view the current catalog and can submit changes.

The user should be able to access the most recent catalog from the database and then submit changes over the system to the next level of authorization.

• Assistant Dean checks off the changes.

The Assistant Dean should be able to compare, on the same screen, the current catalog and the changes made by the department head, and send verification to Academic Affairs that all changes are correct and approved.

• Assistant Dean can make changes to the catalog.

This is similar to the department heads test in that the system takes the changes and sends them through the system to Academic Affairs.

• College Administration can make their changes to the catalog.

The separate administrative offices, along with senior staff, need to be able to access their specific catalog information to make the changes and submit them over the system. This is similar to the procedure for department heads and Assistant Deans use to change the catalog.

• Academic Affairs authorizes all changes.

Academic Affairs is able to review all the changes to the catalog and also can check-off that every change needed is accounted for.

• Academic Affairs can make changes to the system.

As an ability of authorizing all changes, Academic Affairs has the ability to make any of their own changes to any section of the catalog, without restriction of department or office.

• Academic Affairs has administrative rights to the system.

Make sure that this user can reset lost passwords and also can deny changes if an unauthorized user get into the system.

Section 11: Design Hints and Guidelines

Our system is going to input some of the information for the Siena College course catalog through the college database in Banner. This ensures that the most updated information is being displayed. The rest of the information will be coming from Microsoft Word document files. Other than displaying the current catalog, the system will also allow the authorized user a chance to make the necessary changes to the catalog on the same screen. Changes can be made during the year to the current year's catalog. The system will also tell the higher-level users that changes were made and are waiting for review. These changes will be used in the next edition of the course catalog.

In the beginning of March of each school year, when the catalog is officially up for review for the next year, the most recent version of the catalog (with changes made throughout the year) will be available for departments and offices for revision. For all changes made to the catalog, the system should be able to track the hierarchy of the changes and clearly show the changes made for the next person in the revision hierarchy.

Appendix A: Data Flow Diagrams



Spartacus Computing Solutions Requirements Specification



Level 0 Diagram



Level 1 Diagram - Coordinate Web Process



Level 1.1 – Authenticate

Access-to-Own-Department-Forms

Level 1.2 – Change Data



Level 2 Diagram - Manage Data





Appendix B: Prototypes of External Interfaces

The prototypes shown in this document are prototypes of the functionality of the software. The system's interface may not (and probably will not) look like this upon final release of the product.

The first prototype is for a general login screen. This will prompt for a username and password from all users and the system will verify if this is an authorized user.

🛋 Log In Screen				
	SIENAcollege	00	SIENA.	ST42 K
	User Name academicaffairs	Log In		
	Password			
	Siena College Catalog Elick To View Datalog			

The following screen shows the functions that a department head would have. This screen shows a read only version of the catalog and also has a text box where the department head can make changes to the information. The information they will be modifying will be faculty information and course descriptions.

🐂 Department Head			
SIEN	Acollege		
	Department Hea	ıd	
Faculty Information (Current Version Re	ad Only)	Faculty Information (Can Be Modified)	
The current catalog would be displayed	here	The department heads's changes would be displayed	
		Faculty Information Done	
Department Information (Current Version	n Read Only)	Department Information (Can Be Modified)	
	×	×	
		C Department Information Done	
		Course Information (Current Version Read Only)	
		×	
		Course Information Done	
	Done Editing	Cancel	

The Assistant Dean (or anyone at a Dean level) has the ability to view, change, and monitor all information for the departments under the school level. The following prototype shows the ability to view the information as it is held in the current catalog.

🐂 Assistant Dea	an School Information						
	SIENA	Acolleg	ge 🥻			Part of the second seco	STQL.
	Department Head Progres	S S	ssistant Dean		Departmen	t Information E	diting
School Info	rmation Blurb(Current Version	Read Oplu)		School Inform	ation Bluth(Can Be M	odified)	
The current	catalog will be displayed here	▲				ooiooj	•
		¥					¥
				Chool Infor	mation Approved		
		Accept Changes	Ca	ancel			

The Assistant Dean (or anyone at a Dean level) has the ability to view, change, and monitor all information for the departments under the school level. The following prototype exhibits the functionality of changing the faculty and department information.

🖷 Assistant Dea	n					
	SIENA	college	<u>a</u>		STENA	STAL .
	Department Head Progress	Assistan	t Dean		School Informat	ion Editing
		Departm	ient			
Faculty Info	rmation (Current Version Read On	Select one Select one Computer Scie Chemistry Biology	Pince Faculty	Information (Can	Be Modified)	
	catalog would be displayed here		The Ass	istant Dean's cha	nges would be dishi	ayeun
			🔽 Facu	Ity Information App	proved	
Department	Information (Current Version Rear	d Only)	Departr	ment Information (I	Can Be Modified)	
		▲ 				▲ ▼
			🔽 Depa	intment Information	n Approved	
			Course	Information (Curre	ent Version Read Or	aly)
						×
			Г Depa	irtment Information	1 Approved	
		Approve Changes	Cance	1		

The Assistant Dean (or anyone at a Dean level) has the ability to view, change, and monitor all information for the departments under the school level. The following screen shows the ability to monitor the changes from the departments within a particular school.

💐 Assistant Dea	n Progress Screen				
	SIENAco	olleg	e 🚺		
	Department Information Editing		Assistant Dean		School Information Blurb Editing
	Person	Faculty Information	Department Information	Course Information	Send Reminder
	Progress Department 1	V			
	Department 1		X	X	
	Department 3	X			
	Department 4			X	
	Department 5	X	X		
			Send Progress	Reminders	Clear Selections

College administrators have the ability to make changes to the information pertaining to their particular department. This function is similar to that of the department heads, although it does not have to be approved by any member of senior staff. The following is a prototype of the functions of their screen.

🐂 School Administrator			
SIEN/	Acollege		
	School Administrate	or and the second se	
Department Information (Current Version	n Read Only)	Department Information (Can Be Modified)
The current catalog information will be di	splayed here	The current work in progr	ess will be displayed here
		Department Informatio	n Done
	Done Editing	Cancel	

Academics Affairs head user (i.e., Ms. Zimmerman) has administrator control over the system. Therefore, this person has the ability to view, modify, approve, deny, and monitor any changes submitted by any other user accessing the system. The screens for them to view, modify, and approve will be similar to the abilities that an Assistant Dean has. The ability to monitor progress will also be similar to that of the Assistant Dean and the senior staff, but with the ability to view any user's progress. The first of the following two screens shows the capability to view a department head's progress.

🗟, Academic Affairs Department Head Progress Overview								
	SIENAco	ollege			STEAM			
		4	Academic Affairs					
	Person	Faculty Information	Department Information	Course Information	Send Reminder			
Department Information Editing	Progress Department Head 1	V	V					
School Information Blurb Editing	Department Head 2		X	×				
School Department Editing	Department Head 3	X			V			
Department Information Blurb Editing	Department Head 4		X		M			
Progress	Department Head 5	X		×	M			
VP Progress								
Progress								
Permissions								
			Send Progress F	leminders	Clear Selections	•		

This second screen for the Academic Affairs head user (i.e., Ms. Zimmerman) shows the Assistant Dean's progress throughout the revision process of the catalog.

🐂 Academic Affa	irs Assistant Dean Progress				
	SIENA	college			
		Academic Faculty Depart	Affairs ment Course		
	Person	Information Informa	ation Information	Send Reminder	
Department Informat Editing	ion Progress Assistant Dean 1			^	
School Information Blurb Editing	n Assistant Dean 2				
School Departmer Editing	Assistant Dean 3	XX			
Department Informat Blurb Editing	Assistant Dean 4				
Progress	Assistant Dean 5	×	×		
VP Progress					
Academic Dept. Progress					
Permissions					
		Send Pro	gress Reminders	Clear Selections	
者 Start 🗞 Proj	ject1 - Microsoft Visu 🛛 🔄 Ac	ademic Affairs Assi 🦉	AcademicAffairsDHProgr		« 🕅 🛺 12:32 AM

The one major difference with the Academic Affairs' head user and other users is the ability to set permissions. This function will have its own screen, which will have functionality similar to the following prototype.

🐂 Form1									
	SIENAc	olleg	е	00	N AEN		SIENA		57 şā f.
			Academic.	Affairs					
	Person/Username	Password	Financial Aide	Computer Science	Comp Sci. Blurb	Residential Life	Siena Mission	Admin Progress	
Department Information Editing	Permissions Assistant Dean 1	****		2	V				
School Information Blurb Editing	Department Head 1	*****							
School Department Editing	School Administrator 1	*****					V		
Department Information Blurb Editing	VP 1	*****				V			
Department Head Progress	School Administrator 2	*****	V						
VP Progress									
Academic Dept. Progress									
Assistant Dean Progress									
	××	*Note: Grayed che	eck indicates	Read Only	access				•
	Add Person De	lete Person	Change User	mame C	Change Pass	word			

Appendix C: Gantt Charts



Appendix D: Glossary of Terms

- Access A relational database running under Microsoft Windows.
- **Browser** An application program that provides a way to look at and interact with all the information on the World Wide Web.
- **Code** Symbolic arrangement of data or instructions in a computer program, or a set of such instructions.
- **Controlled Decentralized** An organizational structure for teams, in which a team leader is defined, but all problem solving and decision-making is the responsibility of the group.
- Database An information management system used for storing and retrieving related data.
- **Data Store** Generic physical files that contain data necessary for the program, but which is external from the software developed.
- **Data flow diagram** A representation of the functional decomposition of a system.
- Dreamweaver A program used in the development of web pages.
- **Gantt Chart** A graphical-based, progressive timeline containing relevant dates, often used with regard to planning and tracking a project.
- **GUI** *Graphical User Interface:* A user interface based on graphics (icons, pictures, and menus) instead of text; uses a mouse as well as a keyboard as an input device.
- **HMTL** *Hypertext Transfer Markup Language*: A markup language used to structure text and multimedia documents and to set up hypertext links between documents, used extensively on the World Wide Web.
- **Hypertext** A computer-based text retrieval system that enables a user to access particular locations in web pages or other electronic documents by clicking on links within specific web pages or documents.
- **Internet** An interconnected system of networks that connects computers around the world via the TCP/IP protocol.
- Java Script A language used in the development of web pages.
- Linear Sequential Model Sometimes called the *classic life cycle* or the *waterfall model*, this model, originally developed by W.W. Royce, suggests a systematic, sequential approach to software development that begins at the system level and progresses through analysis, design, coding, testing, and support.

- mySQL Open-Source database software
- **Network** A network of data processing nodes that is interconnected for the purpose of data communication.
- **Open-Source** A method and philosophy for software licensing and distribution designed to encourage use and improvement of software by making the code freely available.
- **Oracle** A relational database management system that runs on most mainframe, micro, and personal computers.
- PHP PHP: Hypertext Preprocessor (server-side scripting language).
- Process An activity that changes or manipulates data.
- **Protocol** A standard procedure for regulating data transmission between computers.
- Query A data retrieval request.
- **Relational Database** A database system in which any database file can be a component of more than one of the database's tables.
- **Software** Written programs, procedures, or rules and associated documentation pertaining to the operation of a computer system and that are stored in read/write memory.
- **SQL** *Structured Query Language*: A language used in the creation and maintenance of databases.
- Use Case Set of scenarios that show a usage of the system by a certain user.
- User An individual that has signed onto a system and has been assigned a user name and password.
- Username A system created login for users.
- **Universal User** Any person, whether directly or indirectly involved with the system, who has the ability to perform certain functions. In the case of the *Siena College Catalog Project*, any universal user has the ability to view the Siena College Catalog via the Internet.

Visual Basic – A popular event-driven visual programming system from Microsoft Corporation for Microsoft Windows.

Web-based – Uses the World Wide Web (via HTML) on the Internet to gain access to the system.